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Luana J. Ritch, Ph.D., Chief, Bureau of Health Statistics, Planning & Emergency 

Response, Health Division, Department of Health and Human Services 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
I open this work session for the Senate Committee on Health and Education 
with Assembly Bill (A.B.) 102. 
 
MARSHEILAH D. LYONS (Committee Policy Analyst): 
Our first bill is A.B. 102. The review begins on page 3 of the work session 
document (Exhibit C, original is on file in the Research Library). 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 102 (1st Reprint): Revises provisions governing problem 

gambling. (BDR 40-329) 
 
A letter from Mary Liveratti, Deputy Director, Department of Health and 
Human Services (DHHS), which is on pages 5 and 6 of Exhibit C introduces the 
two amendments proposed by the Advisory Committee on Problem Gambling. 
Ms. Liveratti also addresses two additional concerns raised during the previous 
hearing. The suggested language for the two amendments submitted by 
Laurie Olson, Chief, Grants Management Unit, DHHS, is on page 7 of Exhibit C. 
 
In addition to the amendments proposed at the hearing, you requested 
amendments from the district attorneys who testified on the measure. They 
sent correspondence to all the Legislators letting them know they were not 
going to submit an amendment as they were simply going to oppose the bill. 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
We have received some other documents with amendatory language on them 
from the Las Vegas Sands Corporation (Sands). 
 
MS. LYONS: 
The amendatory language from the Sands (Exhibit D) has already been 
included in the document prepared by Ms. Liveratti on pages 5 and 6 of 
Exhibit C. The other amendment from Judy Phoenix, Ph.D. of the 
Nevada Psychological Association is on page 9. Two letters of support were 
received. The first from the Nevada Council on Problem Gambling is on 
page 11. The second is from the MGM Mirage (Exhibit E). 
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SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
In the language offered by the Sands in Exhibit D, section 8, subsection 2, 
paragraph (a), in the bold, italicized print, it says, “ … except that the court 
cannot relieve the person from his obligation to pay full restitution to the 
victim of the crime or reduce the amount of restitution owed;” where is the 
actual amendment? 
 
MS. LYONS: 
There is not an amendment mock-up in the work session document. 
Their amendment is included on page 7 of Exhibit C. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
I want it on the record that the intent of A.B. 102 is for those people who have 
an identifiable problem with gambling. It is not intended for people who declare 
they have a gambling problem just because they want to go into the program. 
 
MS. LYONS: 
The purpose of the first amendment on page 7, section 6, subsection 1 of 
Exhibit C is to clarify that, as a condition of diversion into a treatment program, 
individuals will be required to pay restitution. The purpose of the 
second amendment on page 7, section 8, subsection 1 is to clarify that there is 
a relationship between the crime committed and the problem gambling addiction 
of the defendant. 
  
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
That was the problem I had. Do the representatives from Washoe County want 
to come forward? Does that clarify or help those of you from Washoe County 
with that section? I see heads nodding in agreement. Okay, that is all 
I needed to know. I want it on the record that we made sure this issue had 
been addressed. 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
I have had conversations with proponents of the bill. If someone does not follow 
the high standards this program requires or in some way either reoffends or 
violates the requirements even just one time, that is it for them. As in other 
diversion and specialty programs, people have “one shot” at it. Is that correct? 
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BILL BIBLE (President, Nevada Resort Association): 
I believe that is contained in the original bill. It is not in any of the 
amendatory language. 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
For the record, I just wanted to make sure, because we had that conversation in 
the hearing. We do not want any extraordinary privileges with the program. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
Also, for the record, is this not similar or identical to what we do for drug and 
alcohol court? 
 
MR. BIBLE: 
There is a fundamental difference. The difference is the individual involved has 
not committed a crime in this particular program. Being a problem gambler is not 
a crime in Nevada. Using drugs illegally is a crime. Alcohol is not a crime, so 
that class of individual is treated similarly to the … . It started in 
Judge Jack Lehman’s courts in southern Nevada. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
Have they really been successful with what they have been doing? 
 
MR. BIBLE: 
Yes. They have. 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
That includes what we were concerned about. 
 
 SENATOR WOODHOUSE MOVED TO AMEND AND DO PASS A.B. 102. 
 
 SENATOR CEGAVSKE SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

***** 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
We will now open A.B. 123. 
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ASSEMBLY BILL 123 (1st Reprint): Revises provisions governing certain offices 

of physicians and related facilities and surgical centers for ambulatory 
patients. (BDR 40-215) 

 
MS. LYONS: 
There were no amendments proposed for the measure; however, there was 
discussion during the hearing about the differences between this bill and 
Senate Bill (S.B.) 70. There is a chart on pages 12 and 13 of Exhibit C that 
outlines the three major differences.  
 
SENATE BILL 70 (1st Reprint): Requires certain offices of physicians and related 

facilities to obtain a permit under certain circumstances and requires 
annual inspections of surgical centers for ambulatory patients. (BDR 40-
169) 

 
CHAIR WIENER: 
Ms. Lyons, if both these measures pass, can you tell us what occurs then? 
 
MS. LYONS: 
If the bills are not identical, you would go through the process to conference 
committee where you would have to reconcile them. 
 
 SENATOR WOODHOUSE MOVED TO DO PASS A.B. 123. 
  
 SENATOR BREEDEN SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
What is the fiscal note on this bill? 
 
MS. LYONS: 
What would you like to know in regard to the fiscal note? 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
With the amendment, does the fiscal note remain or go away? There is a 
fiscal note on the State. 
 
MS. LYONS: 
The motion was to do pass the bill, so there is no amendment being proposed at 
this time. I am not sure if this fiscal note relates to the original version of the bill 
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or if there are distinctions now that would somehow affect the fiscal note. 
Marla McDade Williams from the Health Division may be able to speak to this. 
 
MARLA MCDADE WILLIAMS, M.P.A. (Chief, Bureau of Health Care Quality and 

Compliance, Department of Health and Human Services): 
The amendment does not change the fiscal impact on the bill because it still 
requires us to permit a new facility type—a new provider type—so the 
fiscal note is essentially the same as in the original bill which is about 
$884,000 on future biennia. 
 

THE MOTION PASSED. (SENATOR CEGAVSKE VOTED NO. 
SENATOR WASHINGTON ABSTAINED FROM THE VOTE.) 

 
***** 

 
CHAIR WIENER: 
We will now go to A.B. 181. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 181 (1st Reprint): Revises provisions governing charter 

schools. (BDR 34-550) 
 
MINDY MARTINI (Committee Policy Analyst): 
Two amendments have been submitted for this measure. The first from the 
Department of Education (NDE) is on pages 15 and 16 of Exhibit C. You will 
recall these changes from the hearing. Essentially, there are three parts to the 
NDE’s amendment. The first part clarifies the language to say “provide an 
opportunity” to meet with an applicant instead of saying that they “shall” meet. 
This recommendation was based on specific instances that have happened in 
the past. The second part requires the NDE to pay or reimburse a charter school 
for requested information. That is not located in a specific statute. The 
amendment would add regulation. In the hearing, the NDE noted that 
if regulation, in addition to statute, is added in this bill, they anticipate 
no fiscal impact at this time. The third part would add the same membership 
requirements to the governing body of the charter school as proposed to be 
added to the committee that forms the charter school. 
 
The second amendment was to be submitted by Senator Washington. 
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CHAIR WIENER: 
Do we have copies of Senator Washington’s amendment? 
 
MS. MARTINI: 
No mock-up has been submitted.  
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
Senator Washington, please explain your amendment. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
The amendment is actually S.B. 385 and concerns the Nevada Charter School 
Institute (NCSI). The bill is currently in the Assembly Committee on Ways and 
Means. We want to ensure that the provisions of the NCSI do make it out, and 
we want to make sure it provides a viable opportunity for existing and future 
charter schools. 
 
SENATE BILL 385 (2nd Reprint): Revises provisions governing charter schools. 

(BDR 34-279) 
 
The fiscal impact has caused people some concern. In S.B. 385 there was 
no fiscal note. The administrative fees already implanted both at the 
district level and at the State level have been bumped up, so it would be a 
consistent 2 percent. There is a fiscal note on this Assembly version of the bill. 
Just to make sure the work that has been put forth this past summer and this 
Session does not go in vain, we would like to offer an amendment to 
A.B. 181 and amend S.B. 385 into it. 
 

SENATOR WASHINGTON MOVED TO AMEND AND DO PASS A.B. 181 
INCLUDING THE AMENDMENT FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF 
EDUCATION AND AMEND S.B. 385 INTO THE BILL. 

 
 SENATOR CEGAVSKE SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
SENATOR WOODHOUSE: 
Since I do not have a copy of S.B. 385 in front of me, is that the bill we already 
passed and is in the Assembly now? 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
That is correct. 
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 THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

***** 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
We will now proceed to A.B. 206. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 206 (1st Reprint): Revises provisions relating to public health. 

(BDR 40-858) 
 
MS. LYONS: 
This bill makes various changes to the authority and responsibilities of entities 
responding to adverse public health events. No amendments have been included 
in the work session document for this measure. 
 
 SENATOR WOODHOUSE MOVED TO DO PASS A.B. 206. 
 
 SENATOR BREEDEN SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
Is this the bill that came out of the interim Legislative Committee on 
Health Care? 
 
MS. LYONS: 
It is a bill that came from the work of that committee. Originally, the 
understanding was that the Office of the Governor or the Health Division would 
submit a bill. There was some miscommunication, so the Assembly submitted a 
bill to address the concerns of the interim committee on this particular issue. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
Is this the bill that enhances the whistle-blower statute? 
 
MS. LYONS: 
As the bill was amended, it does some of those things as well, but this was 
not the primary whistle-blower protection bill. This bill deals more with 
the Health Division and gives them the ability to respond to 
public-health emergencies. 
 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/AB/AB206_R1.pdf�


Senate Committee on Health and Education 
May 14, 2009 
Page 9 
 
 THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

***** 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
Now we will go to A.B. 319. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 319 (1st Reprint): Makes various changes relating to school 

employees. (BDR 34-50) 
 
MS. MARTINI: 
On pages 19 and 20 of Exhibit C, an amendment has been submitted by the 
Nevada State Education Association, and it essentially does four things. First, it 
clarifies the definition of school employee which does not include any 
temporary employee or any independent contractor. Second, it adds a provision 
to clarify that disciplinary action does include the issuance of a written summary 
of conference or counseling memorandum. Third, it would delete section 12 on 
page 4 of the bill relating to involuntary transfer. The amendment notes that 
this proposed deletion is made because the involuntary transfer of 
licensed employees is a subject that is commonly—if not universally—addressed 
in existing collective bargaining agreements. Fourth, it reinstates section 9 of 
the original bill which relates to the rights of unlicensed employees. That 
provision appears on pages 19 and 20. On page 20, language is added to that 
section which says, “An unlicensed employee may be suspended with loss of 
pay at any time after a hearing which affords the employee due process of law, 
but the total number of days of suspension may not exceed 20 in 1 year. 
Unless circumstances require otherwise, the suspensions must be 
progressively longer.” 
 
JULIE WHITACRE (Nevada State Education Association): 
Many of the points that have just been presented came out of discussions, 
particularly with the Washoe County School District and the Clark County 
School District. We worked hard to find a compromise and a solution on which 
we could all agree, but we were unable to do so. The language you have in 
front of you did come as a result of those discussions. Defining “employee” and 
“disciplinary action” is how we got to where we are right now. 
 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/AB/AB319_R1.pdf�
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Exhibits/Senate/HR/SHR1278C.pdf�


Senate Committee on Health and Education 
May 14, 2009 
Page 10 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
What we have essentially done is put section 9 back into the bill. Is that 
correct? Would this encourage someone to just sit around and wait for a 
hearing? I have some concerns about the amendment. 
 
SENATOR NOLAN: 
While these individuals are waiting for a hearing, are they on paid leave? 
 
MS. WHITACRE: 
Usually, no, they are on unpaid leave. The language is mirrored directly from 
what licensed employees have. We are just giving unlicensed employees the 
same benefits that licensed employees have by law. What is happening is that 
unlicensed employees are being put on unpaid leave pending the results of 
the hearing. Sometimes it is months or even a year before those results are 
known. It is difficult for these folks to get work—not that they are not looking 
for it—but prospective employers are hesitant to hire them if they are on 
suspension and waiting to go back to their previous job. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
There is a provision in the bill that says if an involuntary transfer is placed upon 
a licensed employee, the transfer cannot be based upon disciplinary reasons. 
It says if the licensee has a problem with the transfer being involuntary, he or 
she can question it being a form of discipline and request a hearing. How long 
does that hearing last, and what is the procedure of the hearing? Who does the 
employee submit their request to? 
 
MS. WHITACRE: 
I believe you are referring to the first reprint of A.B. 319, page 4, section 12, 
lines 8 through 14. We are proposing to strike that section altogether and input 
the new language in the amendment section 9 on pages 19 and 20 of Exhibit C. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
Section 9 in the amendment states “ … if the grounds for dismissal are 
sufficient … .” Is this for an unlicensed employee versus a licensed employee? 
 
MS. WHITACRE: 
Yes. Licensed employees enjoy this benefit by law. We are just giving 
unlicensed employees the same right. 
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SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
Are unlicensed employees subject to collective bargaining in the provisions of 
the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 288, “Relations Between Governments and 
Public Employees?” 
 
MS. WHITACRE: 
They can be. There are 11 of the 17 counties that are unionized. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
Are the two largest counties unionized? 
 
MS. WHITACRE: 
Yes, they are. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
Are they part of the Clark County Teachers Association and the Washoe County 
Teachers Association? 
 
MS. WHITACRE: 
No, they have their own union. They are an affiliate of the Nevada State 
Education Association. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
With the amendment added back into section 9, what is or what will be the 
fiscal note impact? 
 
MS. MARTINI: 
I do not know the effect. If it were deleted because of the fiscal note, I do 
not know what it would do if it were added back in. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
It has got to have a fiscal note because you are asking to have somebody else 
put in, and if they are under those guides, would there not be a financial impact 
if you have to pay them, and they are not working? 
 
MS. WHITACRE: 
I would argue this would not create a fiscal note for a couple of reasons. You 
only have to pay them if insufficient grounds exist for their dismissal. You are 
not just paying them while they are out. Once it is found that there are 
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no grounds for their dismissal, and they come back, then you give them pay. 
Moreover, these are employees who would normally work for the school district 
and normally have a job with the school district, so the school district would 
have already accounted for them when they did their budgeting. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
I would like to have additional information and clarification from our staff and 
from the school districts about this. While the employees are waiting to find out 
what is going to happen, are they required to look for other employment? 
 
MS. WHITACRE: 
I do not know the answer. I believe they are, but I will find out for sure. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
Are the licensed employees required to, also? 
 
MS. WHITACRE: 
I believe they are, but I will find out. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN TICK SEGERBLOM (Assembly District No. 9): 
There is an argument that they have to look for “comparable work.” In the case 
of a teacher, that is very difficult—obviously in the big counties—to find a 
teaching job even in the interim while you are off work. I have argued that for a 
school district employee to find comparable work is problematic, especially in 
this economic time. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
Was this proposed amendment of section 9 in the original bill in the Assembly? 
Or was it amended out after the work session? 
 
MS. WHITACRE: 
Section 9 was in the original bill in a previous form. We have added some 
language regarding the 20 days. The intent was in the original bill. I do not 
know why it was amended out. I have spoken with the Chair of the 
Assembly Committee on Education, Assemblywoman Bonnie Parnell, and she is 
not opposed to the new amendment being put back in. 
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SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
I am baffled. They took it out for a reason—and maybe we do not need to know 
why they did that. Perhaps Assemblyman Segerblom can tell us why they took 
that section out of the bill. 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN SEGERBLOM: 
One of the issues is if a teacher is suspended for 20 days, he or she should not 
have more than that even if that person is out for a year. However, some 
arbitrators have granted the teacher to be rehired, but then they tell the teacher 
that he or she is not going to get any back pay. This was meant to address the 
situation when the person is waiting for arbitration, he or she gets it, and the 
person does not have their salary back. This affects just a handful or people, but 
it is a serious issue for them. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
Once they are reinstated, they would get their salary back. Is that correct? 
Would it be retroactive? 
 
ASSEMBLYMAN SEGERBLOM: 
You are reinstated with back pay which is normally the law. There have been a 
handful of cases where the arbitrators have “split the baby” and said, “We will 
put you back, but we will not give you anything.” 
 
 SENATOR WOODHOUSE MOVED TO AMEND AND DO PASS A.B. 319. 
 
 SENATOR BREEDEN SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
I would like to find out more about the fiscal impact to our school districts that 
are being hit hard right now. Heaven only knows what more we are going to do 
with them. Until we can get some more information, I am going to vote “no” on 
this measure. 
 
SENATOR NOLAN: 
I am going to support the measure, but I am going to reserve my right to look at 
it again on the Senate Floor in the event some unforeseen fiscal impact comes 
up between now and the time it reaches the Senate Floor. 
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THE MOTION PASSED. (SENATORS WASHINGTON AND  CEGAVSKE 
VOTED NO.) 

 
***** 

 
CHAIR WIENER: 
We will now continue to A.B. 433. 

 
ASSEMBLY BILL 433 (2nd Reprint): Requires county hospitals in certain larger 

counties to provide outpatient cancer treatment as part of their care to 
indigent persons. (BDR 40-976) 

 
MS. LYONS: 
There were no amendments proposed for this measure. On pages 22 through 
30 of Exhibit C is the additional information you requested from 
Great Basin Primary Care Association regarding their health net program, and 
the services they provide to cancer patients. On page 23, in the 
middle paragraph of their letter, they indicated they are serving approximately 
10 clients who have resources to pay and have had 50 inquiries from clients 
who do not have resources to pay. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
I have the utmost respect for Assemblywoman Peggy Pierce, and I know this is 
a passion for her. I thought the Clark County people did an excellent job of 
explaining to us what they were doing, why they did it and what the 
other entities have done. They have found resources for each and every one of 
the patients, and they continue to do that. They have partnerships with 
other entities. They make sure everyone is taken care of. 
 
I do not see the need for this bill. Right now in these economic times, we are 
telling Clark County how to spend their money and what services they should 
provide. As Legislators we should not be micromanaging. I do think it is an 
important issue, but at this time the bill is not needed. We need to look at this 
next Session. I will not support the measure. 
 
SENATOR WOODHOUSE: 
I heartily agree with what Senator Cegavske has said. When the 
Oncology Department at the University Medical Center (UMC) was closed, it 
was a huge question as to what we would do for these people. Philosophically, 
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I would love it if UMC had the dollars to put the department back in place. 
On the other hand, the Clark County Department of Social Services (CCDSS) is 
doing a good job in getting our present patients and our new patients the 
services they need. 
 
I would like to hear more information from the CCDSS to briefly restate their 
letter and tell us how these patients are being served. 
 
SABRA SMITH-NEWBY (Director, Department of Administrative Services, 

Clark County): 
I am not with the CCDSS, but Clark County has been providing these services 
much as stated in the letter to the clients and even new clients who have 
presented themselves since the closure of the clinic. We contract with a 
number of providers in the community, so the services are being provided. They 
just are not being provided at UMC. 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
A letter of support for A.B. 433 was received from Tom McCoy, Government 
Relations Director, State of Nevada, American Cancer Society Cancer Action 
Network (Exhibit F). 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
We will now move to A.B. 487. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 487 (1st Reprint): Revises provisions governing pupils enrolled 

in middle school and junior high school. (BDR 34-780) 
 
MS. MARTINI: 
At the hearing, there was some discussion about implementation of portions 
of this bill. A mock-up of Proposed Amendment 4907 is on pages 32 through 
35 of Exhibit C. The amendment does two things. First, it requires the 
board of trustees of each school district to adopt the policies concerning 
the provisions of the bill no later than January 1, 2011, with implementation 
to begin in the 2011-2012 school year. Second, in doing so, the amendment 
requires the board of trustees to submit a report to the State superintendent 
before June 1 concerning how they are doing. Then, the 
State superintendent compiles reports and sends them to the 
Legislative Committee on Education by July 1. 
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CHAIR WIENER: 
Was this the amendment provided by the sponsor of the measure—the Chair of 
the Assembly Committee on Education, Assemblywoman Bonnie Parnell on 
behalf of the Assembly Committee on Education? 
 
MS. MARTINI: 
Yes. That is correct. 
 
 SENATOR WOODHOUSE MOVED TO AMEND AND DO PASS A.B. 487. 
 
 SENATOR BREEDEN SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION PASSED. (SENATOR WASHINGTON VOTED NO.) 
 

***** 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
We will now move to A.B. 538. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 538: Transfers the program for the medical use of marijuana 

from the State Department of Agriculture to the Health Division of the 
Department of Health and Human Services. (BDR 40-1180) 

 
MS. LYONS: 
Several amendments were proposed by Michael McAuliffe on behalf of the 
Nevada Chapter of the National Organization for the Reform of Marijuana Laws. 
Those amendments are on pages 37 through 39 of Exhibit C, and I have 
prepared a summary which is on page 37. 
 
The first proposal on page 37, item 1 would institute a reciprocity provision in 
Nevada statute. This would allow for the other 13 states that issue registration 
identification cards to be recognized here in Nevada. The second on 
page 37, item 2 would allow registered patients to be designated as 
primary caregivers for other patients in the program. As the previous testimony 
indicated, “primary caregiver” is defined differently. It also defines what the 
caregiver can and cannot do on that page and more specifically in 
the NRS 453A.080. The third on page 37, item 3 would remove the provision 
that authorizes the Department to deny an application if the applicant or the 
applicant’s designated primary caregiver has been convicted of knowingly or 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/AB/AB538.pdf�
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intentionally selling a controlled substance. The intent is to eliminate the 
necessity for every applicant to have a fingerprint-background check. The 
fourth on page 37, item 4 would eliminate from the statutory lists of acts for 
which registry identification cardholders are not exempt from State prosecution 
and may not raise affirmative defense … . That included delivering marijuana for 
consideration to any person regardless of whether or not the recipient lawfully 
holds a registry identification card issued by the Department or its designee 
pursuant to the State laws that authorize that. 
 
SENATOR NOLAN: 
I thought the intent of the bill as initially written is exactly what the proponents 
were looking for. I do not see how some of the peripheral amendments being 
proposed are going to be helpful either to the State Department of Agriculture 
(SDA) or to DHHS. When you are ready for a motion, I would just … 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
We have others yet to speak on the issue before I entertain a motion. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
This amendment is a law enforcement nightmare. The courts would 
be inundated. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
It seems rather late to come to the table with these amendments. Madam Chair, 
is there anyone from the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (Metro) 
who would like to speak to this bill? 
 
CHUCK CALLAWAY (Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department): 
Senator Washington hit the nail on the head. This would be a nightmare for 
law enforcement to open the provision for a care provider to have 
numerous patients. In our opinion, that would allow people to grow 
mass quantities of marijuana under the guise of providing it to the 
numerous patients. We, in Metro, oppose this amendment. 
 
SENATOR WOODHOUSE: 
I serve on the subcommittee for public safety, transportation and 
natural resources in the Senate Committee on Finance. This bill came from our 
subcommittee because we needed to move the medical marijuana program from 
the SDA to the Health Division of DHHS. I have met with Mr. McAuliffe a 
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number of times at town halls. While he and his supporters have some 
good points, I am concerned about putting this amendment on a vehicle we 
need for the budget. At this point, I encourage both Houses to work with them 
on possible legislation for next Session that would deal with the policy they 
would like to have. 
 
SENATOR CEGAVSKE: 
I appreciate Senator Woodhouse’s comments, although I do not know that 
I would encourage going forward with another bill draft on that. What is the 
State cost on this? 
 
LUANA J. RITCH, PH.D. (Chief, Bureau of Health Statistics, Planning and 

Emergency Response, Health Division, Department of Health and 
Human Services): 

This program is now being operated in my bureau under contract with the 
SDA. The bill does not have a fiscal impact. It is a transfer of a separate 
budget account from one department to another agency. 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
We have a late “Proposed Amendment 4994” offered to the bill, but it has been 
withdrawn by the sponsor (Exhibit G, original is on file in the Research Library). 
 
 SENATOR NOLAN MOVED TO DO PASS A.B. 538. 
 
 SENATOR CEGAVSKE SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

***** 
 

SENATOR HORSFORD: 
I want to be recorded in the affirmative on the previous measures A.B. 102, 
A.B. 123, A.B. 181 and A.B. 206. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
I vote affirmatively on A.B. 102 and abstain from voting on A.B. 123. 
 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Exhibits/Senate/HR/SHR1278G.pdf�


Senate Committee on Health and Education 
May 14, 2009 
Page 19 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
Yesterday, we voted on A.B. 249. It is a measure to which one of our 
members, Senator Nolan, had offered an amendment. There has been some 
additional conversation about this measure, so I will ask Senator Nolan to 
review it for us. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 249 (1st Reprint): Revises provisions governing the abatement 

of certain nuisances and the protection of public health and safety. 
(BDR 40-1043) 

 
SENATOR NOLAN: 
I want to say this for the record. The Realtors had been working for quite awhile 
on this particular provision in another bill. Unfortunately, that bill did not make 
the deadline. Senator John Lee and I had also been working on this amendment. 
I indicated that the amendment I brought forward was the amendment the 
Realtors had agreed to. This was not the case. I had one set of amendments. 
Through an e-mail, they provided me with another set of amendments which is 
not the one that I passed on to our Legal Division to be drafted. That led to a 
full day of consternation between me and the representatives from the Realtors. 
I want to publically apologize to them and to Rocky Finseth for implying the 
amendment I brought forward was the one with which they agreed—it was 
not—and for implying that Mr. Finseth was anything other than aboveboard with 
me. To those of you with whom I spoke about this after the 
Committee meeting, I want to make that public apology to Mr. Finseth and the 
organizations he represents. 
 
Before you is a mock-up of Proposed Amendment 4838 (Exhibit H). On 
page 3, the green, bold, underlined, italics language embodies much better the 
intention of the amendment, and it is in better consensus language. This bill is 
an effort to stem the epidemic number of toddler drownings we have in 
southern Nevada and are seeing in northern Nevada as well. This is probably the 
best consensus language we are going to be able to develop. This language 
would allow the various boards of health to adopt regulations and to include 
consideration in those regulations of those items listed on lines 18 through 33, 
paragraphs (a) through (f). These provisions demonstrate how barriers would be 
used and how education about swimming pool safety would be disseminated to 
the public. While this may not be as forceful as the measure we passed 
yesterday, I do think this bill will have a positive impact on 
preventing drownings. 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/AB/AB249_R1.pdf�
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SENATOR NOLAN MOVED TO RECONSIDER PREVIOUS ACTION TO 
AMEND A.B. 249. 

 
CHAIR WIENER: 
For the legal clarification, the initial language that Senator Nolan used was 
rescinded, so now we will reconsider it. What is the proper motion, Ms. Partida? 
 
SARA PARTIDA (Committee Counsel): 
I believe it is a reconsider. 
 
 SENATOR CEGAVSKE SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
As we do regularly when we amend a colleague's measures, we ask, "Have you 
had the opportunity to talk with the sponsor of the bill?" 
 
SENATOR NOLAN: 
Yes, I have. I have spoken to him often today. This amendment incorporates the 
handwritten amendments I provided to staff. 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
You had that conversation, and was it an affirmative one? 
 
SENATOR NOLAN: 
Yes, it was. 
 
 THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

***** 
 

SENATOR NOLAN MOVED TO AMEND AND DO PASS A.B. 249 WITH 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT 4838. 

 
 SENATOR CEGAVSKE SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION PASSED. (SENATOR HORSFORD VOTED NO.) 
 

***** 
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MS. LYONS: 
The Committee has processed 44 Assembly bills and 81 Senate bills so far 
this Session. 
 
SENATOR WASHINGTON: 
What is the Chair's intent on A.B. 121? 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 121: Makes various changes concerning health care facilities 

that employ nurses. (BDR 40-492) 
 
CHAIR WIENER: 
It is on General File tomorrow. 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/AB/AB121.pdf�
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With no further business to come before the Senate Committee on Health and 
Education, the meeting is adjourned at 2:36 p.m. 
 
 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 
  
 
 

  
Betty Ihfe, 
Committee Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
  
Senator Valerie Wiener, Chair 
 
 
DATE:  
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